
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, JULY 23, 2018 

IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Gordon Edgar    gordon@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  

1. Introduction to Marty Jimmerson, New Superintendent (Short Q&A) 
 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:gordon@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting July 9, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve Street Closures for the 2018 Hoover’s Hometown Days 

Celebration. 
3. Motion to Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Outdoor Service 

and Sunday Sales privileges for Mexico Lindo, Inc., DBA: Mexico Lindo Grill and 
Cantina; Located, 315 E. Main Street – Pending Dram 

4. Motion to Approve “The Down Under” – Outdoor Service Permit for August 3-5th, 
2018.  

5. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Third Reading of New Ordinance 755: Planned Unit Development 
2. Second Reading, Ordinance 756 Amending Chapter 92 – Water Rates Code of 

Ordinances (sec. 92.05 entitled: “Service Discontinued”).  
3. Second Reading, Ordinance 757 Amending Chapter 70 – Traffic Code 

Enforcement Procedures (section 70.30 entitled: “Parking Violations: 
Alternate”).   

4. Second Reading, Ordinance 758 Amending Chapter 80 – Abandoned Vehicles 
(sec. 80.06 entitled: “Fees for Impoundment”)  

5. Second Reading, Ordinance 759 Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, Solicitors 
and Transient Merchants. (recommend tabling for one cycle) 

6. Resolution 1728 – Approving an Agreement with Veenstra & Kimm Inc. for 
Engineering Services to prepare a Wastewater Treatment Facility Plan. 

7. Resolution 1729 – Approving Change Order #4 for $10,000 -$40,000 (based 
on the option chosen) for Additional Waterway Grading and Clearing & 
Grubbing for the Cubby Park Improvements Project.    

8. Discussion Item: Discussion regarding a Staff Plan to Maintain City Owned 
Alleys.   

9. Discussion Item: The West Branch Meadows Subdivision is beginning their 
planning process for phase 4 of their development. It is requiring decisions 
regarding aging sewer infrastructure. 

10. Discussion Item: 28E Agreement with West Branch School for a radar Speed 
Sign. 
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 
 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               July 9, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                              7:00 p.m. 
  
Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Council members:  Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Jordan Ellyson, Brian Pierce and Nick Goodweiler were 

present.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, 

Public Works Director Matt Goodale, Library Director Nick Shimmin and Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

City Camera Project  

Chief Horihan said the West Branch Police Department received a grant from the Cedar County Foundation in 

the amount of $1500.00 that was put toward the purchase of the camera project which totaled $3000.00.  

Horihan said three cameras have been installed along Main Street:  one at Town Hall facing south and two at 

the gazebo at the corner of Main and Downey Streets one facing east and the facing west.  Horihan further 

stated that at this time, only he and IT Director will monitor the cameras and that camera were put in place to 

protect the residents.  Jones mentioned that a local television station had inquired about access to the camera 

for weather updates.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Jim Glasson, 303 N. Downey Street addressed the City Council regarding FY19 budgetary 

concerns.  Glasson said he felt the City was intending to over utilize TIF for various projects 

discussed at the June 25, 2018 City Council meeting.  Glasson said he had requested a copy of 

the current year budget and noted that the top three areas for expenditures were: public safety, 

culture and recreation and public works.  He further commented that he understood that the 

city’s infrastructure is aging, especially on the east side of town and asked the Council what 

their priorities are.   
 
Kathleen Darling, 303 N. Downey Street addressed the City Council regarding the installation 

of Smart Meters by Alliant Energy.  Darling said she had done some research on the meters and 

felt that there could be serious health threats from the use of the meters.  She requested the 

Council to get more information from Alliant Energy and to allow residents to choose for 

themselves on having them installed at their homes. 

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting June 25, 2018. 

Motion to Approve the Brick Arch Winery – Outdoor Service Permit for Hoover Hometown Days August 4th, 2018. 

Motion to Approve Claims Report. 
  
EXPENDITURES     7/9/2018  
    
ALLIANT ENERGY     LIGHTS-219 E GREEN     12.30  
BRICK, LESLIE     MILEAGE      108.08  
EAST CENT INTERGOVT ASN.    DUES 7-1-18 TO 12-31-18    766.26  
HAWKINS INC     CHEMICALS-AZONE     817.85  
ICMA      ICMA DUES 7-1-18 TO 6-30-19    720.00  
IOWA ASSN. MUN. UTILITIES    SAFETY TRAINING     563.75  
IOWA CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMEN   MEMBERSHIP DUES     120.00  
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL   ANNUAL WATER SUPPLY FEE    266.69  
IOWA LEAGUE OF CITIES    MEMBERSHIP DUES     1,491.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY EMERGENCY M   FY-2019 HAZ MAT TEAM 28E AGREM   47.50  

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

LIBRARICA LLC     SOFTWARE SERVICE RENEWAL    313.35  
LINN COUNTY R.E.C.     LIGHTS & SIREN @ GREENVIEW    155.30  
OLSON, KEVIN D     LEGAL SERVICES     1,500.00  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC.     SERVICE -WAPSI PARK     180.00  
TYLER TECHNOLOGIES    SOFTWARE SUBSCRIPTION FEE    8,378.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     43.82  
US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE    LIBRARY COPIER LEASE    59.00  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     ADVERTISING, LEGAL PUB    388.85  
WINDSTAR LINES INC     BUS CHARTER - CAMP     1,290.00  
    
TOTAL            17,221.75  
    
PAYROLL      6/29/2018      42,214.13  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
ALEXIS FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY   MAINTENANCE SERVICE    12,105.00  
MIDWEST WIRELESS LLC    CAMERAS      3,067.50  
MENARDS      MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    20.95  
MUNICIPAL PIPE TOOL CO. LLC    SEWER MAINTENANCE & INSPECTION   5,550.20  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC     SERVICE CLL     70.00  
AMAZON      BOOKS, PROGRAM SUPPLIES    924.30  
BAKER & TAYLOR     BOOKS, PROGRAM SUPPLIES    155.25  
BEAVER HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING   SERVICE CALL     117.00  
CY'S TREE REMOVAL     TREE REMOVAL & STUMP GRINDING   11,580.00  
FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. INC.    EQUIPMENT     1,807.00  
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    CLEANING SERVICE    1278.66 
HARRY'S CUSTOM TROPHIES    MEDALS      352.00  
JULIA HIME     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    50.00  
KIRKWOOD COMMUNITY COLLEGE   CPR TRAINING     238.00  
KNOCHE, REBECCA     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    150.00  
KOCH BROTHERS     COPIER MAINTENANCE    427.64  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    TELEPHONE SERVICE     1,277.19  
OFFICE OF AUDITOR OF STATE    AUDIT SERVICES     12,935.52  
OVERDRIVE INC     BOOKS      134.98  
PACHECO, HUGO VINICIO HERNANDEZ   REPLACE KITCHEN FLOOR    2,710.00  
PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS    SUPPLIES      33.27  
PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL    PEST CONTROL     95.18  
PSC DISTRIBUTION     SUPPLIES      190.04  
QUILL      SUPPLIES      183.34  
SHRED-IT USA     DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION    45.00  
SUPPLYWORKS     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    47.67  
VEENSTRA & KIMM     WW TREATMENT FAC-PRELIM EVALUATION   1,480.50  
WEST BRANCH FAMILY PRACTICE     DRUG TESTING     40.00  
BENDERA, GEORGE & ALINE    UTILITY REFUND    28.21  
KILBURG, JUSTINE     UTILITY REFUND     61.79  
BLANK PARK ZOO     LIBRARY -SUMMER PROGRAM    157.24  
HAWKEYE PHOTO BOOTHS    HHTD AMUSEMENT     450.00  
IMWCA      WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION    4,725.00  
IOWA COMMUNTIES ASSURANCE POOL   PROPERTY & LIABILITY INSURANCE   43,374.73  
TOTAL            105,863.16  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          165,299.04  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND    65,048.16  
022   TOWN HALL    3,171.33  
031   LIBRARY    7,442.46  
036   TORT LIABILITY    35,570.31  
110   ROAD USE TAX    14,232.51  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   4,570.76  
600   WATER FUND    15,274.75  
610   SEWER FUND    19,988.76  
    
GRAND TOTAL    165,299.04 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Pierce to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Ellyson, 

Pierce, Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller.  NAYS:   None.  Motion carried.   



 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Third Reading, Ordinance 752 Amending Chapter 76 (sec. 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14) the 

Current Bicycle Regulations to Include the Operation of Skate Boards. /Move to action. 

Horihan said the ordinance change was not to outlaw skateboards but to improve public safety.  

Horihan said the manner in which a skateboard is operated makes it too dangerous for nighttime 

riding.  He further stated that skateboards could not be compared to bicycles as skateboards do not 

have brakes.  Stoolman suggested that a skateboard park might help address the issue. 
ORDINANCE 752 

ORDINANCE AMENDING BICYCLE REGULATIONS. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Bicycle Regulations within the corporate limits of 
the City of West Branch; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bicycle Regulations shall apply whenever a bicycle is operated upon any street or upon any public path set 

aside for the exclusive use of bicycles, subject to those exceptions stated herein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the intent of this amendment is not change the regulations regarding bicycling rather it is to include regulations 

related to the various forms of Skateboarding. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to pass legislation regulating the bicycle and 
skateboard within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby amending section seventy (70) 

with the following: 
 

76.02 TRAFFIC CODE APPLIES.  Every person riding a bicycle or using a skateboard or in-line skates upon a roadway 
shall be granted all of the rights and shall be subject to all of the duties applicable to the driver of a vehicle by  the  laws of  

the State declaring  rules of  the  road applicable  to vehicles or by  the traffic code of the City applicable to the driver of a 

vehicle, except as to those provisions which by their nature  can  have  no  application.   Whenever such person dismounts or 
stops from a bicycle or using the skateboard or in-line skates, the person shall be subject to all regulations applicable to 

pedestrians. Skateboards and in-line skates shall not be allowed on city Streets, 20 minutes before dusk till 30 minutes after 
dawn. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.234)  
 
76.10 TOWING. It is unlawful for any person riding a bicycle, skateboard or in-line skates to be towed or to tow any other 

vehicle upon the streets of the City.  
 
76.11 IMPROPER RIDING. No person shall ride a bicycle, skateboard or inline skates in an irregular or reckless manner 
such as zigzagging, stunting, speeding or otherwise so as to disregard the safety of the operator or others. 
  
76.14 SPECIAL PENALTY. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter may, in lieu of the scheduled fine for 

bicyclists, skateboarders, or in-line skates or standard penalty provided for violations of the Code of Ordinances, allow the 

person’s bicycle to be impounded by the City for not less than five (5) days for the first offense, ten (10) days for a second 
offense and thirty (30) days for a third offense.  

 

2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 

adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval and publication as required by law. 
 

First reading: May 21, 2018 

Second reading: June 4, 2018 
Third Reading: June 25, 2018 (tabled) 

Third Reading: July 9, 2018 

 
      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve third reading of Ordinance 752.  AYES:  

Goodweiler, Pierce, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  Stoolman.  Motion carried.   



 

 

 

Second Reading, Ordinance 755, Amending Chapter 165 - Planned Unit Development. /Move to 

action. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to approve second reading of Ordinance 755.  AYES:  

Stoolman, Goodweiler, Miller, Ellyson, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 756 Amending Chapter 92 – Water Rates Code of Ordinances (sec. 

92.05 entitled: “Service Discontinued”). / Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler to approve first reading of Ordinance 756.  AYES:  

Ellyson, Goodweiler, Pierce, Stoolman, Miller.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 757 Amending Chapter 70 – Traffic Code Enforcement Procedures 

(section 70.30 entitled: “Parking Violations: Alternate”). / Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Stoolman to approve first reading of Ordinance 757.  AYES:  

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Ellyson, Miller, Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 758 Amending Chapter 80 – Abandoned Vehicles (sec. 80.06 entitled: 

“Fees for Impoundment”). / Move to action. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman to approve first reading of Ordinance 758.  AYES:  Miller, 

Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading, Ordinance 759 Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, Solicitors and Transient 

Merchants. / Move to action. 

The Council reviewed the current peddler fees compared to other cities and determined that the 

City’s fees were sufficient.  They questioned the current process and liked the idea of a waiting 

period be imposed before the issuance of permits and also obtain vehicle information from the 

permittee.  Council directed staff to provide some options for identifying peddlers for resident 

safety and security. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Pierce to approve first reading of Ordinance 759.  AYES:  

Stoolman, Pierce, Goodweiler, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1726 – Adopting various administrative service fees and adding them to the West 

Branch Schedule of Fees. / Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 1726.  AYES:  Ellyson, Pierce, Miller, 

Stoolman, Goodweiler.  NAYS: None.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion to authorize the City Administrator to finalize an easement access and fence request 

agreement with Care Initiatives (aka Crestview)./ Move to action. 

Jones said he met with Crestview representatives and had come to an agreement to install a 275 

foot commercial grade chain link fence at the rear of their property to provide additional safety for 

their residents.  Jones said hedges would also be planted on the park side of the fence to provide 

additional screening.  The Council was alarmed by the price of the fence and directed Jones to 

obtain additional quotes and have it be a separate project to be completed after the electrical work 

was complete. 

Motion by Miller, second by Pierce.  AYES:  Miller, Pierce, Stoolman, Ellyson, Goodweiler.  

NAYS: None.   Motion carried. 

 

Motion to approve a request for an easement on College Street Bridge Project. / Move to action. 

Schechinger explained the request from the Fobian’s for an easement exchange to allow them to 

access to park semi-trucks along the west side of the Hoover Nature Trail north of College Street.  



 

 

Laughlin said they are local farmers and the City should support them.  The Council was agreeable 

to granting the easement but said they would pay for the gravel parking area. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, Pierce, Ellyson, Goodweiler.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion to submit the amended West Branch Urban Renewal Plan to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission. / Move to action. 

Jones presented the amended urban renewal plan and noted that the areas highlighted in green 

would be added to the existing urban renewal plan.  Laughlin requested that The Meadows Part 4 

be included in its entirety to encompass the aging sewer line that runs through the property. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, Ellyson, Goodweiler, Pierce.  

NAYS: None.    Motion carried. 

 

Resolution 1727 – Approving partial pay estimate #3 in the amount of $247,973.87 to Needham 

Excavating Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvement Project./ Move to action. 

Cody Buelt, Fehr-Graham provided a progress update on the project.  Buelt noted that the 

concession stand footings have been poured and the floor and walls would be done within the next 

week.  He also said the trail around the pond is being worked on as well as final grading for the 

ballfields is near completion.  Motion by Goodweiler, second by Pierce to approve Resolution 

1727.  AYES: Goodweiler, Pierce, Stoolman, Miller, Ellyson.  NAYS: None.   Motion carried. 

 

Discussion - Consideration regarding additional waterway grading, clearing and grubbing for the 

Cubby Park Improvements Project. 

Jones reported that estimates were received on the additional creek clean-up requested by the 

Council at the last meeting.  Two areas were addressed with one estimate being $10,000 and the 

other $30,000.  Jones also confirmed that DNR approval would not be needed.  The Council 

discussed and decided to hold off until the project was near completion and to see if there was still 

money left over from the contingency. 

 

Discussion- Discussion on delay of turf seeding and grow-in plan for the Cubby Park 

Improvements Project. 

Buelt advised the Council that water was still seeping from the hillside.  He said the field tile has 

helped but is still not enough.  Buelt said additional drainage tile will be needed, but Buelt could 

not confirm if that would resolve the issue.  This matter along with other weather related issues 

will delay the seeding schedule.  He further stated that the seeding company said that a fall seeding 

is actually more successful and set a new date of August 15th for the work to commence.  The 

Council discussed the drainage issue in length and disagreed would should be responsible (the City 

or contractor) for paying to correct this issue since the last fix was not successful.  
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported that a recent inspection of the College Street Bridge requires immediate attention to 

fill a gap in the approach.  Jones said Public Works will make the repair this week.  Jones also said 

that the City had received the DNR construction permit to proceed with the project.  He also 

provided updates on other various activities including; the French-Renneker reimbursement check 

had been received, the Hoover’s Hometown Days fireworks permit had been submitted, and the 

memorandum of understanding with Cedar’s Edge and Little Lights had been delivered but that 

signatures had not yet been received. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No report.   

 



 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

Public Works reported that several trees in town have been affected by Asian beetles including 

some of the new trees planted on West Orange Street.  Goodale said the beetles will not kill the 

trees so he was not concerned.  He also said a couple of the trees died and will be replaced. 

 

Park & Recreation reported that day camp programs are in progress and attendance is good.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

No Comments. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Goodweiler, second by Pierce.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council 

meeting adjourned at 9:35 p.m.  

 

  

                              

  _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Street Closures for the 2018 Hoover’s 

Hometown Days Celebration. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Library/IT Director, Nick Shimmin 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

The following items are suggested for the 2018 Hoover’s Hometown Days celebration.  

There is only one change from prior years which is to move the road closure on Main St. 

on Saturday from Poplar to Oliphant St. (listed 3rd in the below list).  This is primarily for 

the lack of an exit once entered, the stage extending significantly into the Main/Poplar 

intersection, and to provide space for Main St. Stage acts to be able to set up without being 

in traffic.  However, traffic exiting from Wetherell will still need to be able to travel 

through that area.   
 
 2nd Street from Main Street to the Water Street Parking Lot from 5:00 p.m. on Friday 

August 4, 2017 to 1:00 a.m. on Sunday August 6, 2017. 
 
 Main Street from Parkside Drive to 2nd Street from 12:00 a.m. on Saturday August 5, 

2017 to 12:00 a.m. on Sunday August 6, 2017. 
 
 Main Street from Parkside Drive to Oliphant Street, S. Downey from Wetherell to 

Main Street, and Wetherell from S. Poplar Street to S. Downey Street from 5:00 a.m. 

to 6:00 p.m. on Saturday August 5, 2017. 
 
 N. Downey Street from Main Street to Green Street from 2:30 a.m. on Saturday 

August 5, 2017 to 6:00 p.m. on Saturday August 5, 2017. 
 
 W Orange St. from N Oliphant St. to Ridge View Dr. on Saturday, August 5th from 

8:15 a.m. to 10:15 a.m. 
 
 Pedersen St. from W Orange St. to Hilltop Dr. on Saturday, August 5th from 8:15 a.m. 

to 10:15 a.m.  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

  

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with 

Outdoor Service and Sunday Sales privileges for Mexico Lindo, Inc., 

DBA: Mexico Lindo Grill and Cantina; Located, 315 E. Main Street 

– Pending Dram. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  July 11, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Outdoor Service and Sunday 

Sales privileges for Mexico Lindo, Inc., DBA: Mexico Lindo Grill and Cantina. 

 

Renewal effective 8/5/2018 to 8/4/2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

  

Consent Item 3 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve “The Down Under” – Outdoor Service Permit 

for August 3-5th, 2018. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  July 11, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Outdoor Service for  

The Down Under for Hoover’s Hometown Days 2018: 

 

Friday, August 3, 2018, 3 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. 

Saturday, August 4, 2018, 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. 

Sunday, August 5, 2018, 12:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Approval from the City Council 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

  

Consent Item 4 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 5 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third Reading of Ordinance 755, Amending Chapter 165 with 

new section 165.50; entitled: “Planned Unit Development” 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  July 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

The origins of PUDs in American communities can be traced to British movements during the 

1950s. The developments in Britain's new communities dealt with the locations of industrial 

elements and how they were publicly dictated before building ever began in order to uphold 

an economic base. 

PUD as a regulatory process is a means of land regulation which promotes large scale, unified land 

development by means of mid-range, realistic programs in chase of physically curable, social and 

economic deficiencies in land and cityscapes. Where appropriate, this development control promotes: 

 A mixture of both land uses and dwelling types with at least one of the land uses being regional in 

nature 

 The clustering of residential land uses providing public and common open space 

 Increased administrative discretion to a local professional planning staff while setting aside present 

land use regulations and rigid plat approval processes 

 The enhancement of the bargaining process between the developer and government municipalities 

which in turn strengthens the municipality's site plan review and control over development for 

potentially increased profits due to land efficiency, multiple land uses, and increased residential 

densities. 

Frequently, PUDs take on a variety of forms ranging from small clusters of houses combined with open 

spaces to new and developing towns with thousands of residents and various land uses. However, the 

definition of a PUD does not take into consideration these types of developments unless they fit into a 

category of size ranging from 100 to 200 acres (40 to 81 ha). In a PUD the property owner owns the 

land the dwelling sits on 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Third and Final Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 1 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Industry
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Economic_base


 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 755 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 165 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES REGARDING THE CREATION AND INCORPORATION OF 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS AND SITE PLANS. 

  

 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission drafted a proposed Planned 

Unit Development Ordinance for adoption by the City Council; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended the City Council approve said Planned Unit Development ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa : 
 
 Section 1.  Amendment.  Chapter 165 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

West Branch is hereby amended to incorporate a section entitled “Planned Unit 

Developments” into Chapter 165 of the Code of Ordinances, which reads as shown on 

Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
  
 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

publication as by law provided. 
  
 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
  
 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this 

ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2018. 

 

 Read First Time:  

 Read Second Time:  

 Read Third Time: 

 

 

         

  ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST:____________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

   PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS. 

 

Section 1. PURPOSE. 

 

 The purpose of a Planned Unit Development is to allow innovative, creative and 

flexible development that is sensitive to economic, cultural and environmental 

considerations.  The Planned Unit Development is intended to maximize benefits from the 

use of open spaces, maximize aesthetics, encourage building design standards that exceed 

normal standards and are compatible with surrounding properties and implement the goals 

of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 The Planned Unit Development the City Council with the flexibility to vary the 

traditional zoning district classifications with mixed types of uses, the ability to vary 

setbacks and bulk regulations, support pedestrian and bicycle safety and encourage 

environmental protection.  The Planned Unit Development is intended to promote 

development which will surpass the quality of development resulting from the strict 

application of the regulations of conventional zoning districts.  However, the Planned Unit 

Development shall not be used to circumvent traditional zoning regulations. 

 

Section 2. LOCATION CRITERIA.  The Planned Unit Development Districts are 

generally intended for use in the following urban contexts: 

   A.   Vacant Land.  Areas of substantial open space, where the structure of conventional 

zoning may artificially limit or constrain good urban design, may restrict the achievement 

of the City’s development objectives, or may not be appropriate to changes in technology 

or demand consistent with the best interests of the City. 

   B.   Community Development Areas.  Areas of the City which are in need of 

rehabilitation or redevelopment, including areas which may be deficient in public facilities 

or services.  In these situations, the PUD District may encourage private investment by 

recognizing the need for flexibility that conventional zoning regulations do not provide. 

   C.   Neighborhood Contexts.  Encourage reinvestment in existing neighborhoods. 

   D.   Promotion of infill development and rehabilitation of underutilized sites. 

Section 3.   PERMITTED LAND USES.  The Planned Unit Development Zoning Districts 

may only include residential, retail or commercial land uses, as listed below: 

 A. Residential Uses.  The Planned Unit Development may contain single-

family, duplex/townhouses and/or multi-family structures. 

B. Professional and semi-professional office buildings, including, but not 

limited to: 
a. Abstracting or title business 

b. Accountants, actuaries, auditors and bookkeeping 

c. Advertising office (no sign shops) 

d. Adjusters (insurance) 

e. Aerial survey and photography 

f. Appraisers and auctioneers (no auction sale of any type on site) 

g. Architects, civil engineers, landscape architects and planners 

h. Attorneys 



 

 

i. Banks and financial institutions 

j. Business or financial analysts and counselors 

k. Building contractors, office only (no shops or equipment and material storage) 

l. Counseling, child guidance and family service 

m. City, County, State or Federal Government office use only (no shops or equipment 

and 

n. material storage) 

o. Drafting and printing services 

p. Engineers, professional 

q. Insurance and bonds 

r. Manufacturer’s agents 

s. Market research and marketing agencies 

t. Model agencies or schools 

u. Mortgage brokers 

v. Public libraries 

w. Real estate sales and management (office only) 

x. Stock broker exchanges, investment services or brokers 

y. Tax consultants 

z. Similar or general office users 

C. Medical Doctors and medical practitioners, optometrists, chiropractors and 

medical services offices, clinics or group medical centers, including dental clinics, but not 

including animal clinics. 

D. The following neighborhood retail commercial and service establishments and uses 

are permitted: 
aa. Apparel (specialty) shops 

bb. Bakeries (retail), including baking for sale on premises only 

cc. Beauty shops and barber shops, but not including schools 

dd. Book stores and stationery stores 

ee. Camera and photographic supply stores, including photo finishing services 

ff. Candy, nut, and confectionery stores 

gg. Coffee shops 

hh. Convenience stores, provided there is no vehicle washing or repair on site 

ii. Drug stores 

jj. Dry cleaning establishment using nonflammable solvents 

kk. Florists, including potted house plants 

ll. Gift, party supply and souvenir shops 

mm. Grocery and specialty food 

nn. Hobby and game shops 

oo. Home accessories, such as small appliances, cookware, and glassware 

pp. Home video equipment and movie rentals 

qq. Jewelry stores 

rr. Liquor stores 

ss. Optical goods and medical supplies 

tt. Restaurants and cafes, provided there is no drive-through or drive-in facility 

uu. Sewing, needlework, linen and piece goods stores 

vv. Shoe repair and tailor shops, including clothing alteration and repair 



 

 

 

E. Day care centers, day nursery or nursery school, licensed in the State of Iowa, 

provided no building, structure, or accessory use for property so used is located less than 

twenty-five (25) feet from Parcel 3 and 4 or any other lot in an residential zoning district; 

and provided there is established and well maintained in connection therewith a 

completely fenced play lot of no fewer than one thousand (1,000) square feet in area for 

the first twenty (20) or less children under care, with twenty-five (25) square feet added to 

such play lot area for each additional designated child capacity of the principal building, 

or as required by State law. 

F. Any use which is found by the City to be similar to one of the above named uses 

and determined to conform to the intent of this parcel. 

Section 4. Planned Unit Development District Application. 

   A.   Pre-Application Meeting.  Prior to submitting the Pre-Petition Concept Plan, the 

petitioner shall meet with City staff to outline the general concept of the proposed Planned 

Unit Development to determine whether the petitioner’s plan qualifies for filing as a 

Planned Unit Development and to discuss issues with the proposed site.  

   B.   Pre-petition Concept Plan.  Prior to filing a formal district boundary amendment 

petition in accordance with the requirements of this Code, the petitioner shall meet with 

the Zoning Administrator for the purpose of submitting a pre-petition concept plan.  This 

plan shall illustrate the conceptual overall plan for the District and shall include at a 

minimum the following information: 

 1. Location, size and legal description of site. 

 2. Location of existing major site features, including, but not limited to, tree 

masses,  

  drainageways and wetlands. 

 3. Location of 100-year and 500-year floodplains on the site, if any. 

 4. Proposed types and densities of development. 

 5. General location and types of buildings. 

 

  C.  Pre-petition Concept Plan Review Criteria.  The review of the pre-petition concept 

plan shall include consideration of the following criteria: 

      (1)   Land use intensity and density. 

      (2)   Ability to provide a positive environment for intended uses, including schematic 

building configurations and arrangements (if available) and general landscaping and site 

design. 

      (3)   Use of open space. 

      (4)   Impact on the surrounding natural and built environment. 

      (5)   Adequacy of on- and off-site transportation and utility systems to serve the 

proposed project. 

      (6)   Consistency with the City’s comprehensive plan. 

      (7)   Architectural quality and compatibility of the proposed project with the scale and 

appearance of surrounding areas. 

      (8)   Compatibility with surrounding uses. 

   D. Following review and approval of the pre-petition concept plan, the petitioner may 

proceed to file a formal district boundary amendment petition in compliance with the 

requirements of this Code.  All district boundary amendment petitions submitted under 



 

 

this paragraph shall be approved by ordinance after the public hearing requirements of this 

Code have been satisfied. 

Section 5. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT SITE PLAN SUBMITTAL.  After 

approval of the Pre-Petition Concept Plan, the petitioner shall submit a Site Plan to the 

Planning and Zoning Commission for review.  The proposed Site Plan shall include, at a 

minimum, the following information: 

 1.  Existing topography of site at 2-foot intervals; 

 2.  Internal and external transportation systems, including pedestrian and bicycle 

system; 

 3.  General location, size and location of footprints of proposed buildings; 

4.  Site master plan, including general envelopes of buildings, parking spaces, open 

space  

     and other site features; 

5.  Conceptual landscape and streetscape plans; 

6.  Building design standards and heights; 

7.  Location of existing utilities; 

8.  Proposed site development regulations, including setbacks and building heights; 

9.  Proposed lighting plan; 

10. Property boundaries of the site; 

11. Utility plans for all utilities to be installed; 

12. Stormwater plans; 

13. Phasing of project, if applicable. 

14. If applicable, preliminary and final plats. 

 

    A.   Zoning Administrator Review.  The Zoning Administrator shall review and 

comment on the proposed concept plan and shall provide the petitioner with written 

comments within thirty (30) days of submission of the proposed concept plan.  At the 

option of the petitioner or the Zoning Administrator, the final concept plan may be 

submitted to the Planning and Zoning Commission and the Council for review and 

comment at the earliest practical meeting. 

   B.   Development Agreement.  Each Planned Unit Development Site Plan shall also 

include a Development Agreement establishing the development requirements for the 

Planned Unit Development.  The Development Agreement shall specify the following 

regulations: 

      (1)   Location and quantities of various land uses. 

      (2)   Master site plan for the development. 

      (3)   Storm water practices; 

      (4)   Front, side and rear yard setbacks. 

      (5)   Maximum heights of proposed structures. 

      (6)   Architectural design standards applicable to the project. 

      (7)   Other development covenants, easements and restrictions. 

      (8)   Site improvements that will be constructed following approval of the Planned 

Unit Development Site Plan.  The City Council may require the posting of a letter of credit 

to ensure the construction of necessary public site improvements. 

      (9)   Schedule of phasing of project, if applicable. 



 

 

   C.   Planned Unit Development Site Plan Submittal.  Complete Planned Unit 

Development Site Plans shall be submitted for review to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and the City Council.  Both the Commission and the City Council shall 

review the Planned Unit Development Submittal for the following items: 

1.  Design of the Project.  The Planned Unit Development Site Plan must represent 

a  

     more creative approach and incorporates a higher standard of integrated design 

and   

     amenities that could be achieved through the use of conventional zoning and 

platting  

     requirements. 

 

2.  Consistency with Comprehensive Plan.  The Planned Unit Development Site 

Plan is  

     consistent with the development standards and objectives of the City’s 

Comprehensive   

     Plan. 

 

3.  Public Services.  The land uses, densities and phasing of the Planned Unit    

     Development Site Plan are consistent with the anticipated ability of the city and 

school  

     district to provide necessary services for the site. 

 

4.  Compatibility with surrounding properties.  The Planned Unit Development 

Site Plan  

     will not substantially impair surrounding property values or impede the orderly  

     development of surrounding property. 

 

5.  Circulation of vehicular, pedestrian and bicycle systems are appropriate for the   

     planned uses. 

 

6.  Provision of appropriate access for emergency personnel and vehicles. 

 

7.  The quality and quantity of opens spaces and landscaping is consistent with the 

higher  

     standard of development of the requirements of the Planned Unit Development. 

 

8.  The phasing of the project is appropriate. 

 

9.  The architectural design of the buildings is consistent with the higher standards 

of  

     development in a Planned Unit Development. 

 

10. The preservation of existing natural resources on the site. 

 

11.  The storm water management practices for the finished site. 



 

 

 

12.  The provision of public utilities to the site. 

 

   D.    A public hearing shall be held by each body in accordance with the requirements of 

Chapter 165. 

   E.  The Commission and Council may impose reasonable conditions, as deemed 

necessary to ensure that a Planned Unit Development Site Plan shall be compatible with 

adjacent land uses, will not overburden public services and facilities and will not be 

detrimental to public health, safety and welfare. 

   F.   Planning and Zoning Commission Action.  The Commission shall act upon each 

Planned Unit Development Site Plan submittal.  The Commission may recommend 

amendments to the proposed Plan.  The recommendation of the Commission shall be 

transmitted to the Council for final action. 

   G.   Council Action.  Approval of a proposed Planned Unit Development Site Plan shall 

be by resolution of the Council.  Said approval shall not occur until after passage by the 

Council of the Ordinance creating the underlying Planned Unit Development zoning 

district. 

   H.   Approvals.  Upon approval by the Council by resolution, the Planned Unit 

Development Site Plan, including the Development Agreement, shall be filed with the 

Clerk.  Additionally, the Development Agreement and the Council resolution approving 

the Planned Unit Development Site Plan shall be placed on record at the Office of the 

Cedar or Johnson County Recorder, whichever is applicable. 

Section 6.   AUTHORIZATION TO COMMENCE SITE IMPROVEMENTS.  Approval 

of a Planned Unit Development Site Plan and prior or contemporaneous approval of the 

underlying Planned Unit Development Zoning District shall authorize the applicant to 

proceed with site improvements, including but not limited to grading, street construction, 

sewer construction, utilities, trails, parks and open spaces, sidewalks and other public 

improvements.  As part of the Planned Unit Development Site Plan submittal, the 

applicant shall state the specific site improvements that the applicant will construct 

following approval of the PUD-A Site Development Plan.  The scope of these 

improvements shall be incorporated into the Development Agreement. 

 Section 7. BUILDING PERMITS.  Neither the approval of a Planned Unit 

Development Site Plan nor the approval of the underlying Planned Unit Development 

Zoning District shall authorize the construction of buildings or the issuance of permits for 

such construction. 

Section 8.   CHANGES OR MODIFICATIONS TO SITE PLAN.  The Zoning 

Administrator has discretion to approve amendments to an approved Planned Unit 

Development Site Plan, provided that: 

      (1)   A written request is filed with the Zoning Administrator, along with information 

specifying the exact nature of the proposed amendment. 

      (2)   The amendment is consistent with the provisions of this section. 

      (3)   The amendment does not alter the approved site requirements of the Planned Unit 

Development Site Plan and does not materially alter other aspects of the Plan, which 

means the following: 

 a. Change the residential density less than five percent (5%). 



 

 

b. Increase the amount of commercial/retail floor space by less than ten 

percent (10%).  

c. The number of housing units is increased less than ten percent (10%). 

d. Does not significantly alter the open space or other amenities on the 

approved Site Plan. 

e. Does not significantly alter the approved architectural design standards. 

 

      (4)   Any amendment not conforming to these provisions shall be considered 

tantamount to a new application and shall be submitted to the Planning and Zoning 

Commission and Council according to the procedures for new applications established in 

this section. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading Ordinance 756, Amending Chapter 92 – Water 

Rates.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 18, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Public Works 

Director Matt Goodale requested a fee increase for the water service disconnection (Chapter 

92.05(4) Service Disconnection.  The fee is requested to be increased to cover the cost of 

staff time and to deter habitual offenders. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve 2nd Reading of Ordinance 756 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

ORDINANCE 756 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 92 – WATER RATES 

 

 

CHAPTER 92 WATER RATES CODE OF ORDINANCES, WEST BRANCH, IOWA  

 

92.05 SERVICE DISCONTINUED. Water service to delinquent customers shall be 

discontinued in accordance with the following: (Code of Iowa, Sec. 384.84)  

1. Notice. The billing clerk shall notify each delinquent customer that service will be 

discontinued if payment of the combined service account, including late payment charges, 

is not received by the date specified in the notice of delinquency. Such notice shall be sent 

by ordinary mail and shall inform the customer of the nature of the delinquency and afford 

the customer the opportunity for a hearing prior to the discontinuance. 2. Notice to 

Landlords. If the customer is a tenant, and if the owner or landlord of the property has 

made a written request for notice, the notice of delinquency shall also be given to the 

owner or landlord.  

3. Hearing. If a hearing is requested by noon of the day preceding the shut off, the City 

Administrator shall conduct an informal hearing and shall make a determination as to 

whether the disconnection is justified. The customer has the right to appeal the City 

Administrator’s decision to the Council, and if the Council finds that disconnection is 

justified, then such disconnection shall be made, unless payment has been received.  

4. Fees. A fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) fifty dollars ($50.00) shall be charged before 

service is restored to a delinquent customer during working hours and a fee of fifty dollars 

($50.00) seventy five dollars ($75.00) shall be charged before service is restored during 

non-working hours. No fee shall be charged for the usual or customary trips in the regular 

changes in occupancies of property. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading Ordinance 757, Amending Chapter 70 – Traffic 

Code Enforcement Procedures (sec. 70.03 entitled: “Parking 

Violations: Alternate”). 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve 2nd Reading of Ordinance 757 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Non Consent Item 3 

BACKGROUND:  

 

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Police Chief 

Mike Horihan requested a fee increase for parking violations (Chapter 70.03 Parking 

Violations.  The change is requested to charge a late fee on parking violations to improve 

timely collections and to increase the disability parking fee to current state limit of $200.00. 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 757 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 70 – TRAFFIC CODE ENFORCEMENT 

PROCEDURES 

 

70.03 PARKING VIOLATIONS: ALTERNATE. Admitted violations of parking 

restrictions imposed by this Code of Ordinances may be charged upon a simple notice of a 

fine of payable at the office of the City Clerk. The simple notice of a fine shall be in the 

amount of fifteen dollars ($15.00) ($30 after 10 days) for all violations except improper 

use of a persons with disabilities parking. The simple notice of a fine for improper use of a 

persons with disabilities parking permit is one two hundred dollars ($100.00) ($200.00). 

Failure to pay the simple notice of a fine shall be grounds for the filing of a complaint in 

District Court.  

 

(Ord. 607 – Mar. 06 Supp.) (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.236 [1a] & 321L.4[2]) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading Ordinance 758, Amending Chapter 80 – 

Abandoned Vehicles. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Police Chief 

Mike Horihan requested a fee increase for impounding vehicles (Chapter 80.06 - 

Fees for Impoundment).  The change is requested to increase storage fees from $3.00 per 

day to $35.00 per day.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Second Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

ORDINANCE 758 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 80 – ABANDONED VEHICLES  

 

 

80.06 FEES FOR IMPOUNDMENT. The owner, lienholder or claimant shall pay three 

thirty five dollars ($3.00) ($35.00) if claimed within five (5) days of impounding, plus one 

dollar ($1.00) for each additional day within the reclaiming period plus towing charges if 

stored by the City, or towing and storage fees, if stored in a public garage, whereupon said 

vehicle shall be released. The amount of towing charges, and the rate of storage charges 

by privately owned garages, shall be established by such facility.  

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.89[3a]) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 759 Amending Chapter 122 – 

Peddlers, Solicitors and Transient Merchants. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Chapter 122 

- Peddlers, Solicitors and Transient Merchants (Chapter 122.05 – License Fees), Council 

requested staff to research fees that surrounding cities charge for permits.  The information 

for 4 surrounding cities is attached for Council review and direction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Second Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

ORDINANCE 759 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 122 – PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS AND 

TRANSIENT MERCHANTS  

 
 

122.05 LICENSE FEES. The following license fees shall be paid to the Clerk prior to the 

issuance of any license.  

1. For one day................................................. $ 10.00  

2. For one week.............................................. $ 25.00  

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 100.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 175.00 

 

 

 

City #1 – Tiffin, IA 

 

1. For one day................................................. $ 30.00  

2. For one week.............................................. $ 50.00  

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 100.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 250.00 

 

 

 

City #2 – Center Point, IA 

 

1. For one day................................................. $ 10.00  

2. For one week.............................................. $ 25.00  

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 50.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 150.00 

 

 

City #3 – North Liberty, IA 

 

 Application Fee $10 (non-refundable) 

 For Solicitors - $20 per year 

For Peddlers & Transient Merchants 

1. For one day................................................. $10.00 

2. For one week.............................................. $ 15.00 

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 40.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 75.00 

 

 

City #4 – Walcott, IA 

 

1. Good for one day only......... ....................... $ 5 (48 hour waiting period) 



 

 

    
 

              REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1728 – Approving an Agreement with Veenstra & Kimm 

Inc. for Engineering Service to Prepare a Wastewater Treatment 

Facility Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Dave Schechinger, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

The City received a new NPDES permit for the wastewater treatment facility that 

includes a compliance schedule to update the facility to meet more stringent effluent 

limits.  The City is required to prepare and submit a facility plan to IDNR by 

December 1, 2018.  Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has met with the City Administrator 

and Public Works staff to discuss preliminary details of improvements that may be 

required in order to meet the new limits.   An engineering services agreement has 

been prepared for Council consideration to engage Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. to 

prepare the required wastewater treatment facility plan. 
 
The plan is anticipated to cost $30,000 we budgeted $18,881 we will have to address 

the short-fall of $11,119 with a budget amendment (from the sewer fund) later in 

the fiscal year. 

 

Note: You may recall we were excluded from taxing for planning sanitary sewer 

disposal from what the State entitled “Planning Sanitary Disposal” in our “16-142 

budget form”.  After asking for certification the State constitutes “Sanitary 

Disposal” as MSW Disposal or even more specifically referenced as Landfill 

projects.  As a result we lost approximately $8,000 for planning sanitary sewer 

disposal but we were able to pick up additional town hall facility funds which will 

help fund with the police evidence space within town hall. 

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1728 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH VEENSTRA & KIMM 

INC. FOR ENGINEERING SERVICE TO PREPARE A WASTEWATER 

TREATMENT FACILITY PLAN  

 

 WHEREAS, the City received a new National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) permit for the wastewater treatment facility that includes a compliance 

schedule to update the facility to meet more stringent effluent limits; and  

 

 WHEREAS, The City is required to prepare and submit a facility plan to IDNR by 

December 1, 2018; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. has met with the City Administrator and 

Public Works staff to discuss preliminary details of improvements that may be required in 

order to meet the new limits; and  

 

WHEREAS, An engineering services agreement has been prepared for Council 

consideration to engage Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. to prepare the required wastewater 

treatment facility plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that the $30,000 of fees for the Wastewater 

Facility Study and Antidegradation Analysis included in the engineering services agreement 

are appropriate and are reasonably related to the purpose for which such fees are charged. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch that the Engineering Service Agreement not to exceed the amount of 

$30,000 to Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. of Coralville, IA is approved. 

 

 

Passed and approved this 23rd day of July, 2018. 

      

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

     Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

Attest: 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1729 – Approving Change Order #4 for $10,000 -

$40,000 (based on the option chosen) for Additional Waterway 

Grading and Clearing & Grubbing for the Cubby Park Improvements 

Project.   

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

We have been asked to provide a cost estimate for the clearing & grubbing of the scrub 

brush along the easterly bank of the waterway near the pond at Cubby Park, as well as a cost 

estimate to grade the banks similar to the west side (back yards of the residents along Gilbert 

Dr) or Lions Field. Due to the pipeline, wetlands, and the pond outlet as constructed, there 

is limited area that can be graded economically. There is approximately 160 feet between 

the pond outlet and the pipeline that can feasibly be graded which has a few larger, desirable 

trees that would be removed (estimated cost of tree removal, grading, and seeding: $10,000). 

There is approximately 250 feet of waterway (200 feet straight line) north of the pond outlet 

that can feasibly be graded that has several larger, desirable trees that would be removed 

(estimated cost $30,000). The cost for each does not include any detailed engineering 

design. We suggest having city staff mark the trees to be removed and simply direct the 

contractor to complete the grading to the feasible slope within the constraints. If detailed 

design is required, we can provide a fee estimate upon request. 
 
Note that no wetlands were identified in these specific areas and the grading will be above 

the normal water line, so a US Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide permit is not required. 

Because no fill material will be placed in the flood plain, no additional permitting is required 

by the Iowa DNR Floodplain Section. It is recommended that the floodplain development 

permit issued by the city be amended to include this work if it is authorized. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

OPTION A 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

OPTION A+ 

$40,000 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

Date: July 23, 2018 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator  

RE: Cubby Park Contingency Budget 

 

Per City Council direction at the July 9th City Council Meeting, I met with Fehr Graham to 

analyze our current contingency budget, and to ascertain its ability to absorb an additional 

waterway clearing project.  Based on information gathered by Fehr Graham, if the 10% 

contingency is based on the original estimate and the value engineering is removed only 

from Needham’s bid, 
 

Total estimate with option A: $2,831,118.55 
 
10% contingency: $283,111.85 
 
Needham bid: $2,945,427.39 
 
Value engineering: $126,207.85 (amount to be set aside until the end of project) 
 
Change orders and overages: $49,526.38 
 
Needham bid – value engineering = $2,819,219.54 
 
Total estimate – (Needham bid – value engineering) = $11,899.01 (this amount is 

then credited to the contingency) 
 
Total contingency = $295,010.86 
 
Remaining contingency = total contingency – change orders and overages = 

$233,585.47 
 
Or, 17.5% used 

 

Currently the project is 32% complete with only 17.5% contingency used.  Based on this 

analysis staff recommends either change order can be afforded. 

 

Change Order #4 (Option A) - 160 feet between the pond outlet and the pipeline that can 

feasibly be graded which has a few larger, desirable trees that would be removed - 

estimated cost of tree removal, grading, and seeding: $10,000 (contingency used would 

be 21% after change order). 
 

Change Order #4 (Option A+) - There is approximately 250 feet of waterway (200 feet 

straight line) north of the pond outlet that can feasibly be graded that has several larger, 

desirable trees that would be removed - estimated cost $30,000 (contingency used would 

be 31.6% after change order). 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1729 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE ORDER #4 FOR $10,000 - $40,000 

(BASED ON THE OPTION CHOSEN) FOR ADDITIONAL WATERWAY 

GRADING AND CLEARING & GRUBBING FOR THE CUBBY PARK 

IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT.   

 

 WHEREAS, Needham Excavating, Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council subsequently approved Change Order 

No. 1 on May 7, 2018 to reflect a Value Engineering decrease in the project scope for a 

price in the amount of $126,000; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch City Council subsequently approved Change Order 

No. 2 on May 7, 2018 to reflect a decrease in the project price in the amount of $20,100; 

and   

 WHEREAS, Change Order Number Three, Revised has been reviewed and 

recommended by the contracted Engineering firm of Fehr Graham in the amount of 

$9,672.30; and    

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said change order. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 

West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the City Council approves a change order with 

Needham Excavating, Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvements project for West Branch, IA 

in an amount not to exceed $9,672.30   

 

Passed and approved this 23rd day of July, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Discussion regarding a Staff Plan / Proposal to 

Maintain City Owned Alleys.  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  July 17, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
During heavy rain fall events the gravel alleys owned by the City wash out into the street. 

This has become a hazardous situation repeatedly with gravel piled up on major streets 

during and after rain fall events. The Public Works Department has advocated for possible 

improvements to City owned alleys for several years. However, this budget item for several 

years has been removed for the interest of other larger projects. Since, Capital Improvements 

has slowed, it maybe an opportunity to address outstanding small projects.  Staff would like 

to propose taking an Ally project a year until we can address every public alley in the city.  

I would like council authorization to pursue gathering multiple quotes for asphalt overlays 

on the alley is feasible at this time. If approved the approach would be to budget for the 

expenditure yearly until the six alleys are completed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: The West Branch Meadows Subdivision is 

beginning their planning process for phase 4 of their development. It 

is requiring decisions regarding aging sewer infrastructure. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The sewer main formerly known as the Stuelke Line located in the present day KLM 

Investment property known as The Meadows is a topic of concern as it relates to its age, 

design, and current day capacity.  It is clear it is not a modern standards and could not handle 

the demand of 48 new homes.  It is also clear there are system failures based on the amount 

of Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) levels found in our waste water treatment.  This places 

unwanted demands our treatment process and capacity.  
 
The City Administrator would like direction regarding the merits of pursuing development 

agreement talk involving the use of TIF as a funding tool to replace this aging infrastructure.  

A potential Public Private Partnership agreement could allow developer to construct a new 

line earlier at lower prices with the understanding to receiving a TIF payment(s) over several 

years. 

 

Per City Council’s last direction on this matter, as a preliminary step for development 

agreement negotiations cost estimates were to be gathered and presented to the city.  It is 

anticipated that a presentation will be given by the developers. 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
MEETING DATE:  July 23, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: 28E Agreement with West Branch School for a 

radar Speed Sign. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Chief of Police 

DATE:  July 18, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

 
Good Afternoon Redmond, 

 

I wanted to send you an email to let you know of the West Branch CSD school board approval to 

jointly purchase a speed sign to be put up by the high school. 

 

The agreement entails the following: 

     - Help the city pay for the sign by providing 50% of the funds for the purchase.  

     - The sign that was approved by the school board came from the bid from Flight Light for 

$3,124. 

     - The city would install the sign and maintain it. 

     - The district would pay 50% of any repairs to the sign as needed. 

 

A 28E agreement will be signed by both the school and city in the near future, but the school is 

okay with purchasing the sign now in order to have it in place by the beginning of the school year. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions, or if any other items need to be discussed prior to 

purchase and the development of a 28E agreement.  Thank you. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

Date: July 23, 2018 
 
To: Mayor and City Council 
 
From: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator  
 
RE: 28E Agreement with West Branch School for a radar Speed Sign. 

 

Staff recommends moving forward with the conceptual agreement with the West Branch 

School District with regard of setting up Speed Radar Sign near the Cedar / Johnson 

County boundary (in the vicinity of the West Branch High School).  We would like to task 

the City Attorney with drafting a 28E agreement which would mirror the basic tenants as 

described in Superintendent Jimmerson’s e-mail.   


